



INDEX OF PHARMACOPOEIAS

The Index of Pharmacopoeias has been circulated to national pharmacopoeia commissions for their feedback and the data received from them have been used to update the previous list (document WHO/EDM/QSM/2004.4). Links to online pharmacopoeias were provided where available. Where no specific links to online pharmacopoeias available online were found, links to organizations of national pharmacopoeial commissions are listed. The list is provided for reference purposes only and does not pretend to be complete.

In order to bring this list up to date we would appreciate any additional data you may have. Please address your observations to Quality Assurance & Safety: Medicines, Medicines Policy and Standards, World Health Organization, 1211 Geneva 27, Switzerland, Fax: (0041 22) 791 47 30, or e-mail: kopps@who.int.

1. NATIONAL

COUNTRY	TITLE	1. PHARMACOPOEIA COMMISSIONS 2. PUBLISHER/DISTRIBUTOR 3. WEBSITE 4. FREQUENCY OF PUBLICATION	EDITION	YEAR	LANGUAGE
Argentina		1. & 2. Farmacopea Argentina Av. Caseros 2161, (1264) Capital Federal Buenos Aires, Argentina	7 th Edition	2002	Spanish
	Farmacopoea Argentina	3. Farmacopoea Argentina http://www.anmat.gov.ar/anmat_files/principal2.htm			Spanish
Austria		1. Arzneibuch Kommission, Bundesministerium für Gesundheit und Frauen Pharmazeutische Angelegenheiten Radetzkystrasse 2, A-1030 Wien			
	Österreichisches Arzneibuch	2. Verlag der Österreichischen Staatsdruckerei, Rennweg 12a, A-1030 Wien	Official Edition Addendum 1 Addendum 2	1990 1990 1991	German German German
Belarus		1. Committee for Pharmaceutical Microbiological Industry Attn: Mr I JA. Kasakevich, Chairman Ul. Varasheni 17 Minsk, Belarus			

Belgium		1. Belgian Pharmacopoeia Commission SPF Santé Publique EUROSTATION, Bloc 2, bureau 8 D12, 8 ^{ème} étage, Place Victor Horta 40 bte 10 1060 Brussels, Belgium			
Brazil		1. Comissão Permanente de Revisão de Farmacopéia Brasileira Prédio 21 – Sala 5013 Caixa Postal 5083 CEP 97111-970 Santa Maria RS			
	Farmacopéia Brasileira	2. Atheneu Editora - São Paulo Ltda. Rue Marconi, 131, 2 ^o andar 01047-910 São Paulo, SP	4 th Edition Part 1 1988 4 th Edition Part 2, vol.1 1996 4 th Edition Part 2, vol.2 2000 4 th Edition Part 2, vol.3 2002		Portuguese Portuguese Portuguese Portuguese
		3. Farmacopéia Brasileira http://www.farmacopeia.org.br/			Portuguese
	Brazilian Homeopathic Pharmacopoeia	1. see above 2. Organizações Andrei Editora S.A. Editora Atheneu Saõ Paolo Ltda. Rue Marconi, 131, 2 ^o andar 01047-910 São Paulo, SP	2 nd Edition, Part 1 1997		Portuguese Portuguese
		3. Farmacopéia Homeopática Brasileira http://www.farmacopeia.org.br/geral/farmacopeia_homeopatica.php			Portuguese
China		1. State Pharmacopoeia Commission of the People's Republic of China Building 11 Fahua Nan li, Chongwen District, 100061 Beijing			
	Pharmacopoeia of the People's Republic of China	2. Chemical Industry Press 3, Huixinli, Chaoyang District, Beijing 100029 3.	8 th Edition, Vol. I, II, III 2005		Chinese English

Croatia

1. Pharmacopoeia Commission,
Institute of the Control of Medicines
Povjerenstvo za farmakopeju
Hrvatski zavod za koutrolu lijekova
Ksaverska cesta 4
HR 10000 Zagreb

3.

Czech Republic

1. Czech Pharmacopoeia Commission
Ministry of Health
State Institute for Drug Control
Šrobárova 48, 100-41 Prague 10,
Czech Republic

The Czech Pharmacopoeia
Pharmacopoea Bohemica MMV

Volumes 1-3

2005

Czech

2. Vydala Grada Publishing a.s.
U Pruhonu 466/22, Praha 7-Holešovice,
Jako svou 1739. publikaci

3. <http://www.sukl.cz/cs37lekopis/cs37publikace.htm>

Denmark

1. Danish Pharmacopoeia Commission
Danish Medicines Agency
Axel Heides Gade 1
DK-2300 København S

3. Danish Medicines Agency
<http://www.dkma.dk/1024/visUKLSArtikel.asp?artikelID=1456>

Danish
English

4. 3 editions yearly

Egypt

1. Permanent Commission of the Egyptian

Egyptian Pharmacopoeia	Pharmacopoeia, Faculty of Pharmacy, Kasr El Ainy, Cairo	2. General Organization for Government Printing Office, Cairo	3 rd Edition	1984	Arabic English
		3. Egyptian Government http://www.egypt.gov.eg/arabic/default.asp			Arabic English
Finland	1. Finnish Pharmacopoeia Committee Laakelaitos, National Agency for Medicines P.O. Box 55, Mannerheimintie 166 FIN-00301 Helsinki	3. National Agency for Medicines http://www.nam.fi/english/pharma_industry/european_pharmacopoeia/index.html			Finnish Swedish English
France	Pharmacopée française	1. Commission Nationale de la Pharmacopée Française, Agence Française de Sécurité Sanitaire des Produits de Santé—Direction des Laboratoires et des Contrôles, Unité Pharmacopée, 143-147, Boulevard Anatole France, F-93285 Saint-Denis	10 th Edition	2005	French
		2. Groupe Liaisons Sante (société Wolters Kluwer) 1, rue Eugène et Armand Peugeot 92 500 Rueil – Malmaison France contact@espaceinfirmier.com www.moniteurpharmacie.presse.fr			
		3. Agence française de sécurité sanitaire des produits de santé http://agmed.sante.gouv.fr/htm/pharma/indpharm.htm http://afssaps.sante.fr/htm/pharma/indpharm.htm			French
		4. Yearly			

Germany		1. Deutsche Arzneibuch-Kommission, Bundesinstitut für Arzneimittel und Medizinprodukte Kurt-Georg-Kiesinger-Allee 3, D-53175 Bonn			
	Deutsches Arzneibuch	2. Deutscher Apotheker Verlag, Stuttgart Medpharm GmbH Scientific Publishers, Birkenwaldstraße 44, D-70191 Stuttgart	2006	German	
		3. Federal Institute for Drugs and Medical Devices http://www.bfarm.de/nn_424928/DE/Home/startseite_node.html_nnn=true		German English	
	Homöopathisches Arzneibuch	1. Deutsche Homöopathische Arzneibuch- Kommission Bundesinstitut für Arzneimittel und Medizinprodukte Kurt-Georg-Kiesinger-Allee 3, D-53175 Bonn			
		2. Deutscher Apotheker Verlag, Stuttgart Govi-Verlag- Pharmazeutischer Verlag GmbH, Eschborn	2006	German	
		3. Federal Institute for Drugs and Medical Devices http://www.bfarm.de/nn_424572/DE/Arzneimittel/azBuch/10azBuecher/10-70homoeopathAzBuch/HAB_Inhalt.html		German	
<hr/>					
Greece		1. Greek Pharmacopoeia Section National Organisation for Medicines Mesogeion Avenue, 284 GR 15562 Holargos Attikis			
	Greek Pharmacopoeia ELLINIKI PHARMACOPOIIA	2. <i>EOF, National Organisation for Medicines, Mesogeion Street, 284 15562 Holargos Attikis Greece</i>	<i>5th Edition, vol. 2 1st Supplement 2nd Supplement</i>	<i>1998 2000 2002</i>	<i>Greek Greek Greek</i>
		3. National Organization for Medicines http://www.eof.gr/eof_en/enhome.html			English

Hungary	Pharmacopoeia Hungarica	1. Hungarian Pharmacopoeia Commission (OGYI) National Institute of Pharmacy, Zrinyi u. 3. P.O.Box 450 H-1372 Budapest 5	<i>8th Edition</i>	2006	<i>Hungarian</i>
		2. Medicina konyvkiado, Budapest			Hungarian English
		3. National Institute of Pharmacy http://ogyi.hu/index.php?lang=hu			
Iceland		1. The State Committee on Pharmaceuticals (Lyfjanefnd Rikisins) Eidistorg 13-15 PO Box 180 172 Seltjarnarnes, Iceland			Icelandic English
		3. www.lyfjastofnun.is			
India	Indian Pharmacopoeia	1. Indian Pharmacopoeia Committee Ministry of Health and Family Welfare Government of India Nirman Bhavan New Delhi-110011	IP Volume 1 IP Volume 2 Addendum 2000 Addendum 2002	1996 1996 2000 2002	English English English English
		3. Central Drugs Standard Control Organization http://www.cdsco.nic.in/index.html			English
Indonesia		1. Indonesian Pharmacopoeia Commission, Direktorat Jenderal Pengawasan Obat Dan Makanan Departemen Kesehatan R.I., Jl, Percetakan			

	Farmakope Indonesia	Negara 23, Jakarta 10560 2. Departemen Kesehatan Republik Indonesia DJL. Percetakan Negara 23 Jakarta 3. National Agency of Drug and Food Control http://www.pom.go.id/	4 th Edition	1995	Indonesian
Iran	Iranian Pharmacopoeia	1. Iranian Pharmacopoeia Drug Administration of Iran, Division of Pharmaceuticals & Narcotic Affairs Fakhre- Razi Street Ministry of Health of Iran Building Tehran, 14, Iran 3.			
Ireland		1. Food and Drug Division Department of Health Hawkins House, Pollberg Street Dublin 2, Ireland 3.			
Italy	Farmacopea Ufficiale della Repubblica Italiana	1. Permanent Commission of the Italian Pharmacopoeia, Istituto Superiore di Sanità, Viale Regina Elena 299, I-00161 Roma 2. Ministero della Salute, Commissione permanente per la revisione e pubblicazione della Farmacopea Ufficiale, Istituto Poligrafico e Zecca dello Stato P. V., 1213045 Roma 3. Farmacopea Italiana Segretariato http://www.iss.it/farc/index.php?lang=1	11 th Edition 11 th Edition Supplement	2002 2005	Italian Italian Italian

Japan	The Japanese Pharmacopoeia	1. Committee of the Japanese Pharmacopoeia Evaluation & Licensing Division Pharmaceuticals & Food Safety Bureau Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare, 1-2-2, Kasumigaseki Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8916	14 th Edition Supplement I Supplement II 15 th Edition	2001 2002 2002 2004 2006	Japanese English English
Korea	The Korean Pharmacopoeia	1. Central Pharmaceutical Affairs Council 194, Tongilro, Eunpyeong-gu, Seoul, 122-704 Korea 2. Korea Food and Drug Administration 194, Tongilro, Eunpyeong-gu Seoul, 122-704 Korea 3. Korea Food and Drug Administration http://www.kfda.go.kr/	8 th Edition	2002	Korean English Korean English
Lithuania		1. Lithuanian Pharmacopoeial Committee State Medicines Control Agency at the Ministry of Health of the Republic of Lithuania 15 Rygos str., LT-05245 Vilnius, Lithuania 3. State Medicines Control Agency at the Ministry of Health of the Republic of Lithuania http://www.vvkt.lt/			Lithuanian English
Mexico		1. Comisión Permanente de la Farmacopea de los Estados Unidos Mexicanos, Rio Rhin 57			

	Col. Cuauhtémoc, Del. Cuauhtémoc C.P. 06500, México DF			
Farmacopea de los Estados Unidos Mexicanos	2. Secretaría de Salud, Leija 7 Col. Juárez, C.P. 06696 México DF	8 th Edition Supplement I	2004 2006	Spanish Spanish
Mexican Herbal Pharmacopoeia		1 st Edition,	2001	Spanish English
	3. The Federal Commission for the Protection Against Sanitary Risks http://www.cofepris.gob.mx			
	Comisión Permanente de la Farmacopea de los Estados Unidos Mexicanos, http://www.farmacopea.org.mx/			
Mexican Homeopathic Pharmacopoeia		1 st Edition	1998	Spanish
	4. Yearly			
Montenegro	1. The Republic of Montenegro, Ministry of Health Romas Square, No 46			
	3. Ministry of Health http://www.mzdravlja.vlada.cg.yu/ http://www.vlada.cg.yu/eng/minzdr/			Serbo-Croatian English
Norway	1. Norwegian Pharmacopoeia Commission, Statens Legemiddelverk, Sven Oftedals Vei 6, N-0950 Oslo			
	3. Norwegian Medicines Agency http://www.legemiddelverket.no/InterDefault_14923.aspx			Norwegian English

Pakistan		1. Pakistan Pharmacopoeia Commission, Ministry of Health, Special Education & Social Welfare, Islamabad			
		3. Government of Pakistan, Ministry of Health http://www.pakistan.gov.pk/ministries/index.jsp?MinID=22&cPath=251			English
		Drugs Control Organization, Pakistan Ministry of Health http://www.dcomoh.gov.pk/			
<hr/>					
Philippines		1. Bureau of Food and Drugs Civic Drive, Filinvest Corporate City Alabang, Muntinlupa City 1781 Philippines			
	Philippine Pharmacopeia	2. Bureau of Food and Drugs Product Service Division	1 st Edition	2004	English
		3. Bureau of Food and Drugs http://www.bfad.gov.ph/			
<hr/>					
Poland		1. Polish Pharmacopoeia Commission, Office for Registration of Medicinal Products, Medical Devices & Biocidal Products ul. Zabrowska 41 03-736 Warsaw, Poland			
	Farmakopea Polska	2. Polish Pharmaceutical Society Długa str. 16, PL-00-238 Warsaw	6 th Edition	2002	Polish
		3. http://www.urpl.gov.pl/kontakt.asp			Polish
<hr/>					
Portugal		1. Comissão Permanente da Farmacopeia Portuguesa, Faculdade de Farmácia, Rua Aníbal Cunha, P-4000 Porto			

Farmacopeia Portuguesa	2. Impresa Nacional, Casa da Moeda, Lisboa	6 th Edition Supplement	1997 2000	Portuguese Portuguese
	3.			
Republic of Serbia	1. Ministry of Health Nemanjina 22 - 26 11000 Belgrade Serbia and Montenegro			
	Institute of Pharmacy of Serbia Vojvode Stepe 458 11152 Belgrade			
	3. Ministry of Health http://www.zdravlje.sr.gov.yu/			
Romania	1. Romanian Pharmacopoeia Commission National Medicines Agency Aviator Sanatescu 48, R-71324 Bucuresti			
Farmacopeea Romana	2. Editura Medicala- Bucuresti	A X-A Supplement Supplement Supplement	1993 2000 2001 2004	Romanian Romanian Romanian Romanian
	3. National Medicines Agency http://www.anm.ro/home.html			Romanian English
Russian Federation	1. Pharmacopoeia Committee, Ministry of Health, Rahmanovskij Per. 3, 101431 GSP Moskva K-51			
State Pharmacopoeia of the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics	2. Medicina, Petroverigskiy Pereulok 6/8, 101000 Moscow	11 th Edition Vol.1 Vol.2	1987 1990	Russian Russian
	3. Government of Russian Federation http://www.gov.ru/			Russian

Slovak Republic		1. Slovak Pharmacopoeia Commission/ Slovenská liekopisna komisia State Institute for Drug Control Kvetná 11, 825 08 Bratislava 26			
	Pharmacopoea Slovaca Slovenský liekopis	2. Ministry of Health, Vydavateľstvo Herba spol. s r.o. Bratislava	1 st Edition, volume I	1997	Slovak
			1 st Edition, volume II	1999	Slovak
			1 st Edition, volume III	2000	Slovak
			1 st Edition, volume IV	2001	Slovak
			1 st Edition, volume V	2002	Slovak
			1 st Edition, volume VI	2002	Slovak
		1 st Edition, volume VII	2004	Slovak	
	Slovenský farmaceutický kódex		1 st Edition	1997	Slovak
		3. State Institute for Drug Control http://www.sukl.sk/			Slovak English
<hr/>					
Slovenia		1. Pharmacopoeia Commission Agency for Medicinal Products & Medical Devices of the Republic of Slovenia Mali trg 6 SI-1000 Ljubljana Slovenia			
		3. Slovenia Ministry of Health http://www.mz.gov.si/index.php?id=670			Slovenian
<hr/>					
Spain		1. Ministerio de Sanidad y Consumo Agencia Española del Medicamentos y Productos Secretaría técnica de la Real Farmacopea Española C/ Alcalá 56 Office No. 554, E 28014 Madrid			
	Real Farmacopea Española	2. Ministerio de Sanidad y Consumo Secretaría General Técnica Centro de Publicaciones and La Librería del BOE	3 rd edition	2005	Spanish

Trafalgar, 27. 28010 Madrid

3. Agencia Española del Medicamentos y Productos
<http://www.agemed.es/profHumana/farmacopea/rfe/home.htm>

Spanish
 Limited English and
 French

Sweden

1. Swedish Pharmacopoeia Commission,
 Medical Products Agency
 P.O. Box 26
 SE-751 03 Uppsala

3. Medical Products Agency
http://www.lakemedelsverket.se/Tpl/StartPage_3.aspx

Swedish
 English

Switzerland

1. Commission Suisse de Pharmacopée
 Swissmedic, Institut suisse des produits
 thérapeutiques, Division Pharmacopée, Case
 postale
 Hallerstrasse 7, CH-3000 Berne 9

Pharmacopoea Helvetica

2. Office fédéral des constructions et de la logistique 10th Edition
 Fellerstrasse 21, CH-3003 Bern

2006

French
 German
 Italian

3. Swissmedic, Institut suisse des produits
 thérapeutiques,
www.swissmedic.ch/pharmacopoeia.asp
www.swissmedic.ch/pharmacopée.asp
www.swissmedic.ch/arzneibuch.asp
www.swissmedic.ch/farmacopea.asp

English
 French
 German
 Italian

4. Yearly

Thailand

Thai Pharmacopoeia

1. Thai Pharmacopoeia Committee
 Department of Medical Sciences
 Ministry of Public Health
 Tiwanond Road, Nonthaburi 11000, Thailand

2. Thai Pharmacopoeia and Reference Substance
 Section 1st Edition
 Vol. I Part 1

1987

English

	Bureau of Drug and Narcotic Department of Medical Sciences Ministry of Public Health Tiwanond Road, Nonthaburi 11000, Thailand	Vol. I Part 2 Vol. II Part 1 Vol. II Part 2 Vol. II Part 3 Supplement	1993 1997 2000 2003 2005	English English English English English
	3. Ministry of Public Health http://www.moph.go.th/index.php Bureau of Drug and Narcotic http://www.dmhc.moph.go.th/webroot/drug/index.stm			Thai English Thai English
Thai Herbal Pharmacopoeia	1. & 2. & 3 as above	Volume I Volume II Supplement	1995 2000 2004	English English
	3.			
Turkey	1. Commission of the Turkish Pharmacopoeia Ministry of Health General Directorate of Pharmaceuticals and Pharmacy Çankiri Cad. No:57 Ulus Ankara, Turkey			
	3. The Ministry of Health of Turkey Mithatpasa Cad. No:3 Sıhhiye Ankara, Turkey http://www.saglik.gov.tr/			Turkish English
Ukraine	1. Scientific and Expert Pharmacopoeial Center (Pharmacopoeial Center) State Department for Control of the Quality , Safety And Manufacture of Pharmaceuticals and Medicinal Goods Ministry of Health of Ukraine Astronomicheskaya st. 33 61085 Kharkov, Ukraine			
The State Pharmacopoeia of the Ukraine	2. Publisher:"RIREG", Kharkov Distributor: Pharmacopoeial Center, Astronomicheskaya st. 33	1 st edition	2001	Ukrainian

		61085 Kharkov, Ukraine			
		3. Ministry of Health http://www.moz.gov.ua/en/main/siterubr/			English Ukrainian
United Kingdom		1. British Pharmacopoeia Commission, Market Towers, 1 Nine Elms Lane, London SW8 5NQ			
	British Pharmacopoeia	2. The Stationery Office, London		2005 2007	English English
		3. British Pharmacopoeia http://www.pharmacopoeia.org.uk/ British Pharmacopoeial Commission http://www.mhra.gov.uk/home/idcplg?IdcService=SS_GET_PAGE&nodId=304			English English
United States of America	The United States Pharmacopoeia The National Formulary	1. & 2. The United States Pharmacopoeia 12601 Twinbrook Parkway Rockville, MD 20852 -1790, USA	USP 29, NF 24 Supplement 1 Supplement 2	2006 2006 2006	English English English
		3. United States Pharmacopoeia http://www.usp.org/			English
		4. Yearly			
Viet Nam	Pharmacopoeia Vietnamica	1. & 2. Vietnamese Pharmacopoeia Commission Ministry of Health – S.R. Vietnam 48 Hai Ba Trung, Hanoi, Vietnam	3 rd edition	2005	Vietnamese
		3. Vietnamese Ministry of Health http://www.moh.gov.vn/homebyt/vn/portal/index.jsp			

2. REGIONAL AND SUBREGIONAL

Europe	European Pharmacopoeia	1. & 2. European Directorate for the Quality of Medicines, Council of Europe, - 226 Avenue de Colmar B.P. 907, F-67029 Strasbourg Cedex 1, France From 1 January 2007 - New Address: 7 allée Kastner, CS 30026 F-67081 Strasbourg Cedex	5 th edition	2005	English/French
			Supplement 5.1	2005	English/French
			Supplement 5.2	2005	English/French
			Supplement 5.3	2006	English/French
			Supplement 5.4	2006	English/French
			Supplement 5.5	2006	English/French
			Supplement 5.6	2007	English/French
			Supplement 5.7	2007	English/French
			Supplement 5.8	2007	English/French
			3. European Directorate for the Quality of Medicines European Pharmacopoeia http://www.pheur.org		
Pharmeuropa		4. New edition every three years. Supplements three times yearly (March, June, November)	18.4	2006	English/French
			18.3	2006	English/French
			1. & 2. as above	2006	English/French
			3. European Directorate for the Quality of Medicines Pharmeuropa http://www.pheur.org/site/page_584.php		English
		4. Four times yearly			
<i>The European Pharmacopoeia Convention has been signed and is applied by: Austria, Belgium, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Republic, Denmark, Estonia, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Hungary, Iceland, Ireland, Italy, Latvia, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Malta, Montenegro, Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Romania, Serbia, Slovak Republic, Slovenia, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, The former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia, Turkey, United Kingdom, and the European Union.</i>					
Africa	African Pharmacopoeia	2. Organization of African Unity STRC Publications Division PMB 2359, Lagos, Nigeria	1	1985	English
			2	1986	English
			3.		

3. INTERNATIONAL

WHO, Geneva

	1. WHO Expert Committee on Specifications for Pharmaceutical Preparations			
The International Pharmacopoeia	2. WHO Press World Health Organization, 1211 Geneva 27, Switzerland FAX (41-22) 791 48 57 e-mail bookorders@who.int	3 rd Edition, Vol.1	1979 1980 1980 1981	English French Spanish Russian Arabic
		3 rd Edition, Vol. 2	1981 1981 1983 1983	English French Spanish Russian Arabic
		3 rd Edition, Vol. 3	1988 1988 1989 1990	English French Spanish Russian Arabic
		3 rd Edition, Vol. 4	1994 1994 1996 1995	English French Spanish Russian Arabic
		3 rd Edition, Vol. 5	2003	English Arabic
		4 th Edition, Vol. 1 Vol. 2	2006	English
		3. World Health Organization http://www.who.int/medicines/publications/pharmacopoeia/en/index.html		English

* * *